
AGENDA 
SHOREWOOD-TROY PUBLIC LIBRARY DISTRICT 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
650 Deerwood Dr., Shorewood, IL 60404 – Meeting Room A 

 
July 13, 2023 

General Meeting 
7:00 pm 

 
1. Welcome 

 
2. Call to order and roll call of Trustees 

 
3. Changes/Additions to the Agenda 

 
4. Approval of Minutes: 

• Regular Meeting, June 8, 2023 
 

5. Comments from the Public 
MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC ARE INVITED TO SPEAK TO THE BOARD. COMMENTS ARE TO 
BE LIMITED TO THREE MINUTES OR LESS. DUE TO OPEN MEETINGS ACT 
RESTRICTIONS, ACTIONS MAY NOT BE TAKEN ON ITEMS NOT ALREADY ON THE AGENDA, 
BUT ACTION MAY BE DEFERRED TO A LATER BOARD MEETING. 

    
6. Treasurer’s Report – June 2023 

 
7. Approval and Payment of Bills 

 
8. Correspondence 

 
9. Librarian’s Report 

a. Director’s Report with personnel– Jennie Cisna Mills 
b. Department Heads 

 
10. Old Business  

a. Parking Lot (Discussion) 
 

11. New Business –  
a. Approval of Tentative Budget & Appropriation Ordinance for FY24 to be filed for public review 

(Action) 
b. Set September 14, 2023, at 6:30 pm for a public hearing on the Budget & Appropriations Ordinance 

(Action) 
c. Approve opening a secondary General Fund account at Shorewood Bank and Trust in a Max-Safe 

account to take advantage of interest rates, signers to follow normal check signing policy (Action) 
d. Approve funding the secondary General Fund account with $150,000 (Action) 
e. Appoint Trustees to an ad-hoc Personnel committee to review and create a new Director evaluation 

tool (Action) 
f. Approve the Illinois Public Library Annual Report for submission to the Illinois State Library, 

pending Secretary’s minutes’ audit (Action) 
 

12. Other Business 
a. Announcements 
b. Agenda-setting for next month (Discussion) 
c. Library Closed – Staff Training Day on Friday, August 4th 
d. Friends of the Library at Crossroads Vendor Fair on Saturday, August 5th 

 
13. Adjournment 
 



Individuals requiring special accommodations as specified by the Americans with Disabilities Act are requested 
to notify the Shorewood-Troy Public Library District Director at 815-725-1715 at least 24 hours before the 
meeting date.   

 
 



SHOREWOOD-TROY PUBLIC LIBRARY DISTRICT 
BOARD MEETING 

June 8, 2023 
 
 
The regular meeting of the Shorewood-Troy Public Library Board of Trustees was called to order by the 
President, Thomas Novinski, at 7:00 p.m. on June 8, 2023.  The meeting took place in Meeting Room A 
of the Library located at 650 Deerwood Dr., Shorewood, IL  60404.   
 
ROLL CALL: 
 TRUSTEES PRESENT: 
 1. Karen Voitik   2. Arthetta Reeder     

3. Tracy Caswell   4. Tom Novinski     
5. Bob Stahl  

  
STAFF PRESENT: 
Jennie Mills, Director 
Cindy Norman, Finance Clerk 
 
VISITORS PRESENT:  None 
 
CHANGES/ADDITIONS TO AGENDA:  Trustee Caswell asked if the appointment of the Personnel 
Committee could be added.  President Novinski said it will be put on next month’s agenda. 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 
 Treasurer Stahl moved that the minutes of the regular meeting on May 11, 2023, be approved.  
Secretary Voitik seconded the motion. All members voted ‘yes’ to approve.   
 
COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC:  None 
 
TREASURER’S REPORT: 
 Cash on Hand Beginning of April 2023   $    607,372.19 
 Cash received during April 2023          159,040.58 
 Disbursements April 2023        (216,140.89) 
 Cash on Hand End of April 2023     $   550,271.88 
 
Location and Denomination of Cash 
 Petty Cash      $       300.00 
 General Fund Checking – Chase        14,543.74 
 Money Market Fund – Chase      146,251.92 
 Money Market Fund – Old Plank Trail     230,726.54 
 Payroll Account – Chase                       33,615.39 
 License Plates – Chase            1,034.53 
 Money Market – Old Plank Trail        22,368.63  
 PMA Financial CD80197       101,431.13    
  
 TOTAL                     $550,271.88 
 
 



APPROVAL AND PAYMENT OF BILLS: 
 Secretary Voitik moved that the bills presented for payment be approved.  Treasurer Stahl 
seconded the motion.  A roll call vote was taken; the motion passed. All Trustees present voted ‘yes.’ 
 
LIBRARIAN’S REPORT: 

a. Director’s Report with personnel  
-Director Mills informed the Board that 559 people attended the Summer Read Kickoff 

b. Department Heads 
 

OLD BUSINESS: 
a. The Village of Shorewood has not been communicating back regarding the parking lot 

project getting put on the Planning and Zoning meeting agenda.  Due to this project being 
time sensitive for completion the Board decided to have the Library’s attorney reach out to 
both the Village and Mr. Michas’ attorney.  Director Mills will call the Library’s attorney to 
start this process.  

NEW BUSINESS: 
 

a. Treasurer Stahl moved/Secretary Voitik seconded to approve the Operating Budget for 
FY24.  A roll call was taken and the motion passed with all Trustees present voting ‘yes’. 

b. Trustee Caswell moved to release Executive Minutes from January 2023 – May 2023.  There 
was no second of the motion so the motion failed.  

c. Secretary Voitik moved/Trustee Reeder seconded to approve Resolution 2023-2 Resolution 
Designating Open Meeting Act Officers (Director Mills and Finance Clerk Cindy Norman; 
Certificates of passing OMA training were presented in the Board packet).  The motion 
passed with all Trustees present voting ‘yes’.  

d. Secretary Voitik moved/Treasurer Stahl seconded to approve Resolution 2023-3 Resolution 
Designating Freedom of Information Act Officers (Director Mills and Head of Circulation Julie 
Hornberger; Certificates of passing FOIA training were presented in the Board packet).  The 
motion passed with all Trustees present voting ‘yes’. 

e. Trustee Caswell moved/Secretary Voitik seconded to approve FY24 Freedom of Information 
Act Policy.  The motion passed with all Trustees present voting ‘yes’.  It will be posted in the 
building and on the website. 

f. Treasurer Stahl moved/Secretary Voitik seconded to approve Required Disclosure of Salary 
for FY24 for employees earning over $75,000 in compensation and benefits.  The motion 
passed with all Trustees present voting ‘yes’. It will be posted in the building and on the 
website. 

g. Secretary Voitik moved/Trustee Caswell seconded transferring over interest earned into the 
General Fund Account.  A roll call was taken and the motion passed with all Trustees present 
voting ‘yes’. 

h. Treasurer Stahl moved/Secretary Voitik seconded to approve repayment of $150,000 to 
reserves from General Fund after the levy tax distribution.  A roll call was taken and the 
motion passed with all Trustees present voting ‘yes’. 

i. Treasurer Stahl moved/Trustee Reeder seconded to approve Ordinance 23-1, Building & 
Maintenance Ordinance, to levy a .02 tax for maintenance of the facility.  A roll call was 
taken and the motion passed with all Trustees present voting ‘yes’. 

j. Board President Tom Novinski appointed Vice-President Vito Schultz and Secretary Karen 
Voitik to the Building Committee. 



k. Board President Tom Novinski appointed Trustee Arthetta Reeder and Vice-President Vito 
Schultz to the Secretary’s Audit Committee. The Audit Committee traditionally does its work 
in August. 

l. Treasurer Stahl moved/Secretary Voitik seconded to update the Library’s Nonresident Fee 
for FY24-for non-residents who do not pay library taxes to any library.  This excludes 
children served by the Cards for Kids Act.  The new fee is $169.89 annually per family.  A roll 
call was taken and the motion passed with all Trustees present voting ‘yes’. 
 

OTHER BUSINESS:   
a. Appointment of the Personnel Committee and opening another account at Wintrust Bank will 

be added to next month’s agenda. 
b. Jennie will be on vacation June 26 – 30, 2023. 

 
Treasure Stahl moved/Secretary Voitik seconded for the meeting to adjourn at 7:23 p.m. with all 
members present voting yes. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
Cindy Norman, Finance Clerk 
 



Director’s Report 

July 13, 2023 

Administrative Duties: 

• The Illinois Public Library Annual Report (IPLAR) was prepared; the financial reports for June 
were prepared early enough that I could complete everything this month. 

• I completed the final report for the LSCA (remodeling) grant and submitted it to the State 
Library. 

• The Budget & Appropriations Ordinance was prepared.  It must be on file for public inspection 
for at least 30 days. Since the next Board of Trustee meeting is August 10th, the August meeting 
won’t work for the passage of the ordinance (as it typically doesn’t).  September 14th is the 
board meeting date that works for the public hearing and enactment of the Ordinance. 

External Factors to Track: 

• It looks increasingly likely that the Teamsters’ union will strike with UPS.  UPS is how the Library 
gets most of its shipments, including deliveries of new books.  While I’m positive that our 
vendors will seek alternate shippers, I expect clogs up and down the supply chain, and this will 
likely hold for various industries, of course, not just libraries.  It is something to keep in mind. 

Grants: 

• The Per Capita Grant award check ($32,125.50) arrived on Friday, July 7th. 
• The new self-checks, to be paid for from ARPA grant funds, have been ordered and will arrive in 

the fall.  

Staffing: 

• August 4th is the annual Staff Day. This year our day includes: 
o Becky Spratford, with RA For All, provides training on readers’ advisory services 
o CPR Certification Training for all staff 
o Situational training 
o Review of Policies 

• Cristina Soto is our new Children’s Programming Coordinator. She was hired to replace Lori 
Freeman, who was promoted to the Children’s Services Manager. 

• Melissa Almanza is the new Marketing Specialist, replacing Mara Barbel, who moved to 
Maryland on July 12th. 

• Lindsey Justice is a new Circulation Aide, replacing Meesum Jeffery, who also moved to 
Maryland (not with Mara… but to pursue an internship at NPR). 

• Jessica Roper had been our new Adult Outreach Specialist but found that health issues made 
returning to work difficult.  The Library will promote Sarah Haish when she completes her 
practicum with JJC for her Library Technical Assistant Degree.  Sarah is a current Circulation 
Aide. 

 



Meetings: 

• Pinnacle Governing Board Meeting, External (June 16) 
• Orientation for New Board Members – LIMRiCC, External (June 20th) 
• Department Manager’s Meeting, Internal (June 21st) 

 

Garden flowers received from a patron this month  

 



Technical Services Department Head Report 

June 2023 
 

June meetings and events: 

• 6/21 – Department head meeting. Discussed the close of the fiscal year in Polaris, our 
ILS.  
 

Current projects: 

• Adding new juvenile literature bags into the system. 
 

 

 

 

Tech Service Statistics 
 
Items processed, cataloged, and added to the collection in June: 

 

 

 

 

23

80

86

356

286

0 50 100 150 200 250 300 350 400

Children AV

Adult AV

Teen book

Childrens book

Adult book



Items ordered in June: 

 

 

 

CollectionHQ 
___________________________________________________________________ 

Circulation and Turnover 
*This graph displays the circulation of the items in our library as well as the turnover of the 
items. Data is displayed over 5 points in time. 

Turnover is the circulation during the date range divided by the number of our items. 

The most recent dip is still due to our closure in March. 

 

34

63

86

326

366

0 50 100 150 200 250 300 350 400

Children AV

Adult AV

Teen book

Childrens book

Adult book



Dead Items – All Audiences 

*This graph shows the percentage of items on shelf that have not been checked out in 2+ years. 
Our Dead percentage is at 7.41%. Anything under 10% is considered good. 

 

 

 

 

 

Grubby Items – All Audiences 
*This graph shows the percentage of items currently circulating that have had 40+ checkouts. 
Our grubby percentage is at 3.08%. As with the dead percentage, the goal is to be under 10%. 

 

 



Diversity, Equity, and Inclusion (DEI) 
This is a tool that gives us a snapshot of how diverse our collection is in regards to race, gender, 
culture, etc.  

Items Analyzed this month: 87,762 
DEI Items: 14,996 (17.1% of our collection ; .2% increase from last month) 

 

 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

Respectfully submitted, 

Leslie Lovato 
Technical Services Manager 



MONTHLY REPORT
JUNE 2023

BECKY GOODE
ADULT, TEEN & TECHNOLOGY SERVICES MANAGER

Adult Services
The library was donated tickets for upcoming concert events at Ravinia through
Ravinia's Words & Music Program.  As tickets are limited (2-4 per specified event),
we are giving to patrons through passive programming.  
Circulation staff built an additional rotating shelf to accommodate more Blu-ray
discs for patrons to browse from near circulation. 

Teen Services
No new projects to discuss.

Adult & Teen Outreach
 No new projects to discuss.

Technology
A second EZ Scan Station has been installed and is ready for use by the front doors.  
This station is meant for a quick scan-and-go transaction.  The new full scan
station that was installed last month, with faxing properties, is working well.
The Coin tower bases have been replaced with a safe, mobile base.  We also now
have credit card readers installed at both the fax coin tower, and printing coin
tower. 
The self-check station on main level has had the computer replaced due to age
and function.  Computer was replaced with an extra the library had on hand to use
until new scan stations arrive in the fall.  



0 25 50 75 100 125

Family 

Adult Craft 

Adult Book Club 

Adult Other 

Teen Craft 

Teen Other 

Technology 

ILP 

0 2.5 5 7.5 10

Alden Estates 

Shorewood Horizons 

Senior Services Technology 

Timbers of Shorewood 

Timbers Book Club 

PROGRAMS & OUTREACH

 

ACTIVE PROGRAMS

PASSIVE PROGRAMS

OUTREACH
PROGRAMS/EVENTS

STAFF MEETINGS
PROGRAMS & OUTREACH

All Adult & Teen Services Staff
Summer Read Kickoff 

Becky - Adult, Teen & Technology Manager
Family Craft
Horizons Visit x 2
Meeting with Dell Technology
Teen D&D
Department Head Meeting
Kiwanis Meeting
Timbers Visit
Timbers Book Club
Home Delivery
Tai Chi
Virtual Tai Chi

Kimberlee - Adult & Teen Programming
Coordinator

Teen D&D
Dog Treat Program
Proctor
Mystery Stitch Along x 4
Arcade Bookmark
CASA Volunteer Training
Laconi Webinar
Novel Idea Book Club
Virtual Pinterest
Plant Swap
Puppy Yoga

Violet - Adult & Teen Services Assistant
Dungeons & Dragons x 2
Dog Treat Program
CASA Volunteer Training
Tween Time

Rebekah - Adult & Teen Services Summer
Assistant

Gaming Dice Bag
Communico Training

Bee Garden
Alden Delivery
Senior Services Tech

True Story Book Club
Communico Training

NUMBER OF PROGRAMS: 7

TOTAL PATRONS: 309

KICKOFF ATTENDANCE: 559

ADULT SIGN UPS:
251

ADULT COMPLETIONS:
10

TEEN SIGN UPS:
111

TEEN COMPLETIONS:
2

SUMMER READ:

PROGRAMS & OUTREACH



2020 2021 2022 2023

4,000 

3,000 

2,000 

1,000 

0 

ELECTRONIC CONTENT

Unique Users
88

Items Viewed
24

KANOPY
STATS

Libby
78%

hoopla
21.4%

Kanopy
0.7%

STATISTICS

We have three electronic material platforms, Kanopy (movies and television shows), Libby
(e-books and audiobooks), and hoopla (e-books, audiobooks, movies, television shows,

graphic novels, and music).

 E-CONTENT
BREAKDOWNEL

EC
TR

O
N

IC
C

O
N

TE
N

T 
TO

TA
LS

REFERENCE QUESTIONS
TYPES OF REFERENCE QUESTIONS

Holds - when patrons ask for items to be placed on
hold for them.

 
Item Availability - when we search our catalog and/or

shelves to see if an item is available for checkout.
 

Programs - questions related to library programs for all
ages.  For example, "What do I need to bring with me to

the Tai Chi program?"
 

Quick Answer - easy to answer questions with quick
answers, such as "What time do you open tomorrow?"

 
Reader's Advisory - reading recommendations based

on a conversation with a patron.  For example, "Can you
help me find a new mystery book?  I really like thrillers."

 
Reference - questions involving research, dealing with
passports, license plate renewals, or any other in depth

topic.  For example, "Where is the closest post office,
and how do I get there?"

 
Technology - questions on computer programs, smart

phones, e-readers, or other technology related
programs and devices.

Technology
20.4%

Reader's Advisory
18.9%

Reference
16.4%

Programs
12.4%

Item Availability
11.5%

Quick Answer
10.6%

Holds
9.7%

2020 2021 2022 2023

2,500 

2,000 

1,500 

1,000 

500 

0 

QUESTION
BREAKDOWN

Q
U

ES
TI

O
N

 T
O

TA
LS



 
0 25 50 75 100

2020 

2021 

2022 

2023 

NEW CARDS  

0 2,500 5,000 7,500

2020 

2021 

2022 

2023 

DOOR COUNT

MONTHLY REPORT
JUNE 2023

JULIE HORNBERGER
CIRCULATION MANAGER

ITEMS CHECKED IN ITEMS CHECKED OUT

0 5,000 10,000 15,000 20,000

2020
 

2021
 

2022
 

2023
 

0 2,500 5,000 7,500 10,000 12,500

2020 

2021 

2022 

2023 

0 10 20 30 40

April 

May 

June 

0 5 10 15 20

April 

May 

June 

NOTARY MOBILE PICK UP
 



MONTHLY REPORT
June 2023

LORI FREEMAN
CHILDREN'S MANAGER 
DEPARTMENT UPDATES

 June has been a super busy month in the Children's Department. Summer Read is off
to an AMAZING start. We registered 592 children for summer read, 331 of whom were
registered at the SR Kickoff.  Between 200 to 300 patrons have come in every week to
participate in our weekly summer read activities. The SR Power Up Shop has been a
huge success. The patrons have been so excited to spend their earned coins. Our team
decided we will use this reading incentive again for next year's SR. So far 16 children
ages 0-4 and 30 children ages 5-12 have completed their SR logs! We anticipate the
next two weeks will continue to be very busy! 

Our puppy programs, Homemade Dog Treats and Puppy Meet and Greet were family
favorites this month. Nigel and Brutus from LCC K-9 Comfort Dog Ministries were so
sweet and the kids loved sitting with them and reading. We had many requests to
have them back again. 

Children's Outreach
We are working together with the Village of Shorewood to promote literacy, physical
activity and family time in our community. They recently installed a 13-station StoryWalk
at the Shorewood Village Hall that begins near the pavilion, proceeds across the
footbridge and continues on the path around the pond. Gina added our first book, 
I Really Want the Cake by Simon Philip. Additional activities, QR codes, and other
information will be included on the the last station of the StoryWalk to further enhance
the readers experience and encourage the community to visit us at the library. The book
will be changed once a month through October to encourage continued use of the
StoryWalk. 

PROGRAMMING



Deliverables
Active Programs Passive Programs

REFERENCE TRIAGE
Passive Programs Offered

12

1,060
Total Attendance

Passive Programs Offered
4

1478
Total Attendance

Reference Breakdown 6/23
We had 147 patrons ask about available materials, 56 ask general
reference questions, 74 holds were placed, 158 questions were asked
about programs, 93 quick answers were provided, 145 reader's advisory
transactions were conducted, and 83 patrons asked about technology.
84 study room reservations were made.

Active Programs Offered
20

2112
Total Attendance

6/23 6/22 6/21

Availa
ble

 M
ate

ria
ls

Refe
re

nce ?

Hold
s P

la
ced

Pro
gra

m
 ?

Quick A
nsw

ers

Readers
 A

dviso
ry

Technolo
gy q

uest
io

ns

2,000 

1,500 

1,000 

500 

0 



June 2023
Monthly Board Report
Melissa Almanza & Mara Barbel, Marketing

Department Highlights:
This June, I was hired as the new Marketing Specialist. I continue to work alongside Mara who
has done an outstanding job acquainting me with this role and all its responsibilities. We are
halfway through the Summer Read Program and are getting started on upcoming projects.
Important contacts and access have been transferred from Mara to me to make for a smooth
transition when she departs this July.

Website Visits:
2023 - 6,986
2022 - 6,730
2021 - 6,600

2,073 Unique Visitors

eNewsletters:
Sent - 7,026
Read - 3,277
Clicks - 136

46.64% Read

Program Marketing:
6/2023
Facebook: 1
Friend: 18
In-House Signage: 3
Library Staff: 33
Website: 170
Newsletter: 177

6/2022
Facebook: 24
Friend: 8
In-House Signage: 8
Library Staff: 25
Website: 185
Newsletter: 210

6/2021
Facebook: 2
Friend: 4
In-House Signage: 8
Library Staff: 15
Website: 215
Newsletter: 52



 
 
 
 
 
July 23, 2023 
 
TO: Shorewood-Troy Library Board of Trustees 
 
FROM: Jennie Mills, Director 
 
RE: Tentative Budget & Appropriations Ordinance & Set Date for Public Hearing of September 14 
 
The Tentative Budget & Appropriations has been prepared.  As is typical, each line item has been 
inflated by between 15-20%. This allows the Library to be flexible with line items without frequently 
revising the budget.  If the Library receives unexpected income or expenses, the B&A will account for it. 
 
If there was no overage written into the B&A, if the Library received unanticipated income, such as a 
legacy, the Library could not legally spend it until the next fiscal year. Conversely, if unexpected 
expenses, such as building work, needed to be done, if the overage weren’t in the B&A, it would be 
harder to handle. 
 
By practice, the Library adheres to the working budget when internally budgeting. The Treasurer’s 
Report that the Board receives utilizes the Working Budget numbers, not the B&A numbers. 
 
The Tentative Ordinance will be published in the Sentinel. The public must be allowed to have at least 30 
days of inspection prior to the public hearing and its eventual passage.  
 
I am recommending that: 
 

• The Board approve placing the B&A on file for inspection 
• The Board approve Thursday, September 14th6:30 pm for the public hearing. 

 
 
 



Tentative Budget and Appropriation Ordinance 23-2  
Of the 

Shorewood-Troy Public Library District 
Will County, Illinois 

For Fiscal Year July 1, 2023 to June 30, 2024 
 

Whereas, Jennifer Cisna Mills, Library Director, was designated by the Board of Trustees to 
prepare in tentative form a budget and appropriation ordinance for the SHOREWOOD-TROY 
PUBLIC LIBRARY DISTRICT, WILL COUNTY, ILLINOIS, and in accordance with such 
designation has prepared such tentative budget and appropriation ordinance and on July 13, 2023 
such tentative budget and appropriation ordinance was submitted to and inspected by the Board of 
Library Trustees who thereupon ordered the same filed with the Secretary and ordered the 
Secretary to make the same conveniently available to public inspection and the Secretary has 
made said tentative budget and appropriation conveniently available to public inspection for at 
least thirty days prior to action thereon; and 
 
Whereas, prior to final action, a public hearing was held as to such budget and appropriation 
ordinance on September 14, 2023, notice of which hearing was given at least 30 days prior 
thereto by publication in The Shorewood Sentinel, a newspaper regularly circulated in the 
District, and all other legal requirements having been complied with:  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of Library Trustees, of THE 
SHOREWOOD-TROY PUBLIC LIBRARY DISTRICT, WILL COUNTY, ILLINOIS: 
 
SECTION 1. That the following budget containing an estimate of receipts and expenditures of the 
SHOREWOOD-TROY PUBLIC LIBRARY DISTRICT, WILL COUNTY, ILLINOIS, be and 
the same is hereby adopted as the budget of this District for the fiscal year commencing July 1, 
2023 and ending June 30, 2024. 
 
Estimated Receipts 
Estimated Cash on Hand July 1, 2023 
 Cash in the Special Reserve Fund   $ 357,562 

Cash in Unemployment Fund    $   10,939 
 Cash in the General Corporate Fund   $ 242,702 
 Cash in the Audit Fund     $   52,177 
 Cash in the Liability Insurance Fund   $   24,097 
 Cash in the Municipal Retirement Fund   $141,863 
 Cash in the Building Maintenance Fund               $ 137,500 
      Total  $966,840 
 
Cash to be received from 2022 general corporate, municipal retirement, liability insurance, audit, 
and building maintenance tax levies:  

Balance, Unemployment/ WC Levy   $     2,100 
Balance, Corporate Tax Levy    $ 638,826 

 Balance, Audit Tax Levy    $        840 
 Balance, Liability Insurance Tax Levy   $     1,680   

Balance, Municipal Retirement Tax Levy  $     5,880 
 Balance, Building Maintenance Tax Levy  $     6,720 

Total Cash to be received from 2022 Levy $  656,046 
 



Cash to be received from the 2023 general corporate, municipal retirement, liability insurance, 
audit, and building maintenance tax levies:       
 Unemployment / WC Levy    $       5,000        
 General Corporate Tax Levy    $1,341,534  
 Audit Tax Levy      $       1,665  
 Liability Insurance Tax Levy    $       4,162 
       Municipal Retirement Tax Levy    $     12,154    
 Building Maintenance Tax Levy    $     14,062    

Total 2023 Levy     $1,378,577 
To be collected after the close of the Fiscal year  $  689,288 
 To be Received during Fiscal Year  $  689,289 

 
Other Income: 
 Personal Property Replacement Tax   $    80,000 
 State Per Capita Grant     $    35,000 
 Interest       $    40,000 
 Fines       $      6,000 
 Copy Machines      $      7,000 

Miscellaneous Income     $  400,000 
 Donations / Gifts / Grants    $   350,000 
 Contribution / Impact Fees    $   40,000 
    Total Other Income  $  958,000 
 
Total Estimated Cash Available During the Year 
Including Working Cash Fund    $3,270,175 
 
 
Estimated Expenditures 2023-2024 
Payroll Rel Exp: 
Professional Salaries    $  500,000 
Non professional Salaries   $  400,000 
IMRF, Emplr’s Portn    $    60,000 
FICA, Emplr’s Portn    $    72,000 
Health Insurance    $    65,000 
Unemp Comp/Wrk Comp   $    10,000 
 Total Payroll    $1,107,000 
 
Library Materials: 
Books      $  150,000 
E-Books     $    25,000 
Periodicals     $      5,000 
Newspapers     $      4,000 
Audio Books     $      5,000 
CD’s (Music)     $      1,000 
Videos      $    10,000 
 Total Lib Materials   $  200,000 
 
Contractual Services: 
Website Maintenance    $    15,000 
Management Services    $    25,000 
Computer Pinnacle Svcs.   $    80,000 



Maint. of Equipment    $    40,000 
Computer Supp. /Software   $    30,000 
Photocopier Supp. & Equip.   $    15,000 
Databases     $    60,000 
State of IL License Plates   $    95,000  
 Total Contractual Serv  $  360,000 
 
Supplies & Services: 
Processing Supplies    $     11,000 
Office Supplies     $      8,000 
Management Supplies    $      7,000   
Assets not Captlzed    $    10,000 
Telephone Services    $    11,000 
Adult Serv Prog     $    12,000 
Postage      $    15,000 
Circulation Supplies    $      5,000 
Youth Serv Prog    $    12,000 
Teen programming/Outreach               $      9,000    

Total Supplies & Services  $   100,000 
 
Misc. Expense: 
Adv. & Publishing    $    25,000 
Mileage/ Meeting /Etc.    $      5,000 
Professional Development                                    $     10,000 
Professional Dues    $      2,000 
Library Promotion & Dev   $      5,000 
 Total Misc. Expense   $    42,000 
 
Util. & Building Expense: 
Electricity     $    12,000 
Gas      $      8,000 
Mnt. & Safety of Grnd.    $    15,000 
Water      $      3,000 
Util. & Jan. Supplies    $      5,000 
Routine Main. of Bldg.    $    45,000 
Janitorial Serv.     $    20,000 
Ins. Bldg., Cont. & Lia.    $    20,000 
 Total Util. & Building Expense $   128,000 
 
Capital Expenses: 
Fixed Assets Cap.    $             0 
Cap. Imprv. to Bldg & Grnd   $  450,000 
Land Purchase     $             0 
 Total Capital Expenses  $  450,000 
 
Overhead Expenses:     
Legal Services     $    10,000 
Audit & Acct. Serv    $    16,000 
Administrative Expenses   $    10,000 
Special Reserve Fund    $    30,000 
Err. & Omiss. / Treas. Bond   $      4,000 



Contingences     $    10,000 
 Total Overhead Exp.   $    80,000 
   
Total Estimated Expenditures      $2,467,000 
 
Estimated Cash on Hand at Close of Fiscal Year 
Including Working Cash Fund     $803,175 

 
 
SECTION 2.  That the following amounts, or so much thereof as may be authorized by law and 
may be needed, be and the same are appropriated for general corporate purposes, audit expense, 
municipal retirement expense, liability insurance expense and building maintenance expense of 
the SHOREWOOD-TROY PUBLIC LIBRARY DISTRICT, WILL COUNTY, ILLINOIS, for 
the fiscal year commencing July 1, 2023 and ending June 30, 2024. 
 
SECTION 3. That all unexpended balances of any item or items for which an appropriation is 
made by this budget and appropriation ordinance may be expended in making up any 
insufficiency or deficit in any item or items for which an appropriation is made by this ordinance. 
 
SECTION 4. That a certified copy of this ordinance is published at least once after passage in a 
newspaper published or circulated in the District. 
 
SECTION 5. This Ordinance is effective immediately upon passage and approval. 
 
Passed by the Board of Trustees of the SHOREWOOD-TROY PUBLIC LIBRARY DISTRICT, 
WILL COUNTY, ILLINOIS, this 14th day of September 2023. 
 
Approved this 14th day of September 2023. 
 
 
       ________________________________   

Thomas Novinski 
President of the Board of Trustees of 

THE SHOREWOOD-TROY PUBLIC LIBRARY DISTRICT  
WILL COUNTY, ILLINOIS 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
___________________________________ 
Karen Voitik 
Secretary 
      
 
 
 
 



 

 

July 13, 2023 

TO: Shorewood-Troy Library Board of Trustees 

FROM: Jennie Mills, Director 

RE: Opening a Secondary General Fund account at Shorewood Bank & Trust in a MaxSafe account 

TLibrary’s Money Market at Chase earns .05% in interest, which is where the General Fund is held.  
Currently, the Wintrust Money Market earns an average (it varies daily) of about 5%.   

MaxSafe also has the advantage that Wintrust can increase the FDIC coverage of $250,000 across their 
15 charters to $3.75 million. 

At this time, with the amount of tax distributions received, I would recommend opening a second 
General Fund account with a deposit of $150,000 to take advantage of the interest earnings and liquidity 
that the money market at Wintrust offers.  



 

 

July 13, 2023 

TO: Shorewood-Troy Library Board of Trustees 

FROM: Jennie Mills, Director 

RE: Appointing Trustees to an ad-hoc Personnel Committee   

The President will appoint two trustees to a Personnel Committee to create a new Director-Evaluation 
tool. 



 

 

July 13, 2023 

TO: Shorewood-Troy Library Board of Trustees 

FROM: Jennie Mills, Director 

RE: Illinois Public Library Annual Report 

I was able to complete the Illinois Public Library Annual Report (IPLAR) which reports the Library’s 
statistics to the Illinois State Library in July.  It is in your packet for approval and submission, pending the 
work of the Secretary’s Audit Committee (Arthetta & Vito) in August.   

Unfortunately, when the report is printed, it doesn’t show the prior year’s numbers, so I’ve handwritten 
them in for comparison (and yes, I realize my handwriting has gotten worse over the years.  I apologize.) 

I’ve also created several graphs that the board might find of use, looking at longer trend-lines or data 
that might be not what is expected. 

 

 

 

It’s a concerning chart, and it’s happening for a couple of reasons: 

• Some types of media are declining in usage, like CDs and DVDs.  Those circs just won’t be there, 
and some decline is to be expected.  The library has ADDED Rokus, but while patrons can watch 
a variety of shows and movies in the checkout period of a Roku, the library only sees 1 checkout 
– that of the actual device. 

• A change in preferred format by patrons.  For example: 
 

91
00

5

79
13

4

84
82

5

70
95

8

64
62

7

2 0 1 9 2 0 2 0 2 0 2 1 2 0 2 2 2 0 2 3

USAGE OF PHYSICAL ADULT ITEMS 
DECLINING



 
 
Usage of digital items (ebooks and e-audios) are increasing.  Over the 5-year span of 2019 to 
2023, usage of digital items has nearly doubled. 
 
And for some formats, like Audiobooks, our patrons vastly prefer the digital format, especially as 
players for CDs become more limited.  I don’t have 5-year data for this; the Library has only 
recorded the difference between e-books and e-audios for 2 years, but you can see the 
difference between physical audiobooks and e-audios in FY22 and FY23. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

18
,0

64

24
44

1

32
60

9

31
05

7 34
70

2

2 0 1 9 2 0 2 0 2 0 2 1 2 0 2 2 2 0 2 3

INCREASING USAGE OF DIGITAL 
MATERIALS

42
97

45
96

10
15

0

14
98

0

2 0 2 2 2 0 2 3

AUDIOBOOK LISTENERS PREFER 
DIGITAL FORMAT

Physical Digital



However, overall circulation, when digital items are included with the circulation data, is 
trending positively. 
 

 
 
And circulation of Children’s materials is a particularly bright spot.  This upward trend coincides 
specifically when the Library switched to face-out shelving for picture-books, making it easier for 
kids and their caregivers to see the bright, appealing covers of the books that they might want 
to check out. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

160000

165000

170000

175000

180000

185000

190000

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

5-Year Circulation Trend
60

98
4

51
98

9

52
17

7

77
46

6

81
80

1

2 0 1 9 2 0 2 0 2 0 2 1 2 0 2 2 2 0 2 3

INCREASING USE OF KIDS' BOOKS



Children’s programming numbers are also rebounding, meaning that the Library is building a 
strong foundation of readers into the next generation. 
 

 
 

Some other quick statistics for the year: 

• 36,686 reference transactions 
• A door count of 60,610 
• The Library processed 1,027 passport applications before sending to the US Dept of State 

Melissa Almanza, our new Marketing Specialist, is preparing an End-of-the-Year Recap for mailing soon. 

27
6

20
9

33
9

33
6

23
9

13
20

6

74
86 91

23

90
54

14
39

9

2 0 1 9 2 0 2 0 2 0 2 1 2 0 2 2 2 0 2 3

KIDS' PROGRAMMING HAS 
REBOUNDED

Program Attendance












































	July 2023
	June 2023
	Directors Report 07062023
	Lovato-June23
	NEW Becky Board Report 62023 - Adult Teen Technology
	NEW Circulation Report June 2023-2
	Children's June 2023 Board Report
	06.2023 Monthly Board Report - Marketing
	B&A memo & set September 14th at  for public hearing
	B&A Ordinance 23Tentative
	Wintrust document
	Personnel Committee
	IPLAR memo
	IPLAR 2023

